

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, AND HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint REGULAR Meeting Wednesday, February 24, 2021 * 6:00 p.m.

Teleconference Location Only-City Hall/Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California This meeting will be conducted in accordance with Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20 related to the COVID-19 virus.

| CIT | rv (| , \ \ | MOI | LME | MDE | DC |
|-----|-------|-------------|------|-----|-----|----|
| CI. | 1 T L | , OU | INCI | | | K3 |

Lesa Heebner, Mayor

Kristi Becker Kelly Harless David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor Councilmember Councilmember
District 1 District 3

Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela Ivey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:

Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, Kristi Becker, Kelly Harless, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson

Absent: None

Also Greg Wade, City Manager Present: Johanna Canlas, City Attorney

Angela Ivey, City Clerk

Dan King, Assistant City Manager

Mo Sammak, City Engineer/Public Works Dir.

Ryan Smith, Finance Dir.

Joseph Lim, Community Development Dir.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: None

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Harless to approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None

Note to Public: Refer to <u>Public Participation</u> for information on how to submit public comment. This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council on items relating to City business and not appearing on today's agenda by having submitted written comments for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda.

Comments relating to items on this evening's agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by the City Council on public

comment items. Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:

An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1. - A.6.)

Note to Public: Refer to <u>Public Participation</u> for information on how to submit public comment. Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless pulled for discussion.

Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).

Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be discussed immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar.

A.1. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Ratify the list of demands for January 23, 2021 – February 05, 2021.

Item A.1. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

A.2. General Fund Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2020/21. (File 0330-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2020/21 General Fund Adopted Budget.

Item A.2. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

A.3. TransNet Funds Transfer. (File 0390-35)

Recommendation: That the City Council

 Adopt Resolution 2021-020 approving the transfer of \$29,180 of TransNet funds from SB18 Pavement Maintenance account into the SB16 Annual Pavement Maintenance Project (Congestion Relief SB16-9362.20).

Item A.3. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk's Office.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to

approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

A.4. Solana Energy Alliance (SEA) 2019 Power Content Label and Attestation. (File 1010-40)

Recommendation: That the City Council

 Adopt Resolution 2021-024 attesting to the veracity of information provided in Solana Energy Alliance's 2019 SEA Choice Power Content Label; SEA Green Power Content Label and SEA's Power Source Disclosure Report based on Staff and SEA consultant's input and review.

Item A.4. Report (click here)

Item A.4. Supplemental Docs (updated 2-18-21 at 6pm)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk's Office

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

A.5. Americans with Disability Act (ADA) Pedestrian Ramps. (File 0820-20)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt **Resolution 2021-022**:

- a. Awarding a construction contract to PAL General Engineering in the amount of \$43,500 for the ADA Pedestrian Ramps, Bid No. 2021-02.
- b. Approving an amount of \$6,000 for construction contingency.
- c. Authorizing the City Manager to execute the construction contract on behalf of the City.
- d. Authorizing the City Manager to approve cumulative change orders up to the construction contingency amount.
- e. Appropriating \$49,500 to the Federal Grants revenue account and to the ADA Pedestrian Ramps CIP project, both in the CDBG fund.
- f. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2020/21 Adopted Budget accordingly.

Item A.5. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk's Office.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

A.6. Minutes of the City Council.

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve the Minutes of the January 27, 2021 City Council meetings.

Approved Minutes http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F0F1200D-21C6-4A88-8AE1-0BC07C1A81A7&Type=B_BASIC

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Becker to

approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1. – C.2.)

Note to Public: Refer to <u>Public Participation</u> for information on how to submit public comment. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by submitting written correspondence for the record to be filed with the record or by registering to join the virtual meeting online to speak live, per the Public Participation instructions on the Agenda. The maximum time allotted for each speaker is THREE MINUTES (SBMC 2.04.190).

C.1. Quarterly Investment Report. (File 0350-44)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Accept and file the Cash and Investment Report for the quarter ended December 31, 2020.

Item C.1. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk's Office.

Jennifer Meza, Public Agency Retirement Systems (PARS), and Mitch Barker, PARS, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the status of the PARS accounts for pension and other post-retirement benefits (OPEB).

Christiane Tsuda, Highmark Capital, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the City's pension liability accounts' investments.

Council and Consultants discussed economic projections as they relate to the estimates, economic impacts on investments, and the lower fees of institutional class mutual fund investments.

Genny Lynkiewicz, Chandler Asset Management, presented a PowerPoint (on file) on the City's reserves investments, economic bearings, the COVID stimulus, the Federal Reserve estimates, unemployment claims, inflation, bond yields, and investment performance.

Council, Staff, and Consultants discussed the PARS decreasing the pension liability, PERS (Public Employee Retirement System) actuarial valuation that continues to increase the liability, and that the City's contributions and PERS changes to the discount rate and mortality rate should level out in five years.

Greg Wade, City Manager, stated that this information was presented to the Budget and Finance Commission.

C.2. Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2020/21. (File 0330-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

 Adopt Resolution 2021-021 revising appropriations in the Fiscal Year 2020/21 Budget.

Item C.2. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new

submittals. The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk's Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Ryan Smith, Finance Dir., presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the suggested midyear adjustment line items for revenues, expenditures, costs and reimbursements. He said that the Budget and Finance Commission reviewed the information at their last meeting.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve. **Approved 5/0:** Ayes: Heebner, Becker, Harless, Zito, Edson. Noes: None. Motion carried unanimously.

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE: None

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)
STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)

ADJOURN:

Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 7:12 p.m.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk Council Approved: March 24, 2021